Public Document Pack

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audiorecorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use
of social media by anyone attending. This does not apply to
any part of the meeting that is held in private session.

Please ask for:
Marie Lowe

20 January 2017
Dear Councillor
You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT Overview and Scrutiny Committee to be held on Monday 30 January
2017 at 7.30pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden
City, Herts, AL8 6AE.

Yours faithfully

Executive Director
Public Protection, Planning and Governance

AGENDA
PART 1
SECTION A – Procedural Business and Policy Review and Development Items.
1.

SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS
To note any substitution of Members made in accordance with Council Procedure
Rules 19-22.

2.

APOLOGIES

3.

MINUTES
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 November
2016 (previously circulated).

4.

ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6)
Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on
the status of actions agreed at the last meeting of this Committee.

5.

NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 20

6.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS
To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on the Agenda.

7.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS
Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions.

8.

GARDEN WASTE COLLECTION REPORT (Pages 7 - 16)
Report of the Executive Director (Resources, Environment & Cultural Service) sets
out how the collection of garden waste will operate following the Council’s decision
to introduce a charge for the service. It is proposed that the scheme will be
introduced at the start of the next financial year.

9.

ENVIRONMENT SERVICES 2ND QUARTER 2016/17 (Pages 17 - 26)
Report of the Executive Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services)
combines Environment Services information and Serco’s customer satisfaction
performance for Quarter Two for 2016/17 which were set out the appendix of the
report.

10.

EAT OUT EAT WELL HEALTHY EATING AWARD (Pages 27 - 30)
Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)
sets out information regarding the “Eat Out, Eat Well” initiative which is a healthy
eating award that the Public Health and Protection Team are planning to deliver
with the Borough’s compliant food businesses. The award will help to promote
healthier food choices.

11.

PEST CONTROL UPDATE (Pages 31 - 36)
Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)
provides Members with information relating to the pest control service provided by
the Council appointed contractor, SDK Environmental Ltd (“Dial a Pest”), during
the period March 2016 to November 2016.

12.

UPDATE ON OPERATION REPRISE AND OPERATION BALSAM (Pages 37 46)
Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)
updates Members on the work carried out by the Environmental Health Team in
relation to out of hours noise work, provided by three distinct services Operation
Reprise; Operation Balsam and Specific Investigations.

13.

CONSIDERATION OF ADDITIONAL STREET TRADING CONSENT (Pages 47 52)
Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance)
asks Members to consider legalising street trading in certain areas of Hatfield
Town Centre. This would enable the Town Centre Manager to invite traders to
attend appropriate events to enhance the ambience, increase footfall and benefit
businesses in Hatfield. It will necessary for Full Council to change the designation
of these areas from “prohibited streets” to “consent streets”.

14.

COMMITTEE OVERVIEW WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17 (Pages 53 - 54)
The pro-forma which sets out the Committee’s overview work programme has
been updated since the last meeting to enable forward planning of items to be
considered to take place. Items which the Committee agrees it would like to
consider will be scheduled into the work programme.

15.

RESPONSE FROM CABINET/COUNCIL TO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
There are no responses to report to this meeting.

SECTION B – Scrutiny Items – Executive Members are excluded from this part of the
meeting.
16.

CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS FOR SCRUTINY
To consider
1. Whether any Cabinet decisions should be scrutinised post-implementation
(Paragraph 14.1 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules)
2. Whether any items which relate to areas covered by the Committee which a
member of the Committee may wish to raise with a view to deciding whether
an issue should be scrutinised.
The Administration and Opposition Groups each have the right within the Municipal
Year to have one scrutiny topic referred to a Sub-Committee.
Where the Committee decides an issue should be scrutinised, a scrutiny SubCommittee should be appointed to carry out the specific piece of scrutiny work
(Paragraph 6.3 of the Procedure for the Operation of the Overview and Scrutiny
Function).

17.

COMMITTEE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17
Members are asked to note that the next meeting of the Scrutiny Sub-Committee
on the Review of Trees is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 8 February 2017.

18.

RESPONSE
FROM
CABINET/COUNCIL
RECOMMENDATIONS/REPORTS
There are no responses to report to this meeting.

TO

SCRUTINY

19.

COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION
To receive any request from a Councillor for a discussion on behalf of residents on
an issue affecting a single council ward where local problems have arisen and
other methods of resolution have been exhausted.

20.

SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION

21.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
The Committee is asked to resolve:
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press
and public be now excluded from the meeting for items 22 and 23 (if any) on the
grounds that they involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt
information as defined in Section 100A(3) and Paragraphs 1 (Personal
Information) and 5 (legal and professional privilege) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of
the said Act (as amended).
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the
public interest in disclosing the information.

Part II – Private and Confidential Items
22.

HACKNEY CARRIAGE OFFICE ENFORCEMENT ACTION 2015/16 (Pages 55 58)
Exempt report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and
Governance) provides members with a summary of the work undertaken by the
Hackney Carriage team during the past year.

23.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN

Circulation:

Councillors

H Beckett
J Broach
N Chapman
J Cragg (Vice-Chairman)
K Holman

S Johnston (Chairman)
H Quenet
L Sparks
N Taylor
J Weston

Co-opted Members:Tenants’ Panel Representatives
B.Robbins and Jill Armstrong-Bridges
Executive Board
Press and Public (except Part II Items)
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Marie Lowe,
Governance Services Unit on 01707 357443 or email – m.lowe@welhat.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4
Part I
Item No: 4
Main author: Marie Lowe
Executive Member: Councillor Roger Trigg
Not Ward Specific
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 30 JANUARY 2017
REPORT OF THE
GOVERNANCE)

EXECUTIVE

DIRECTOR

(PUBLIC

PROTECTION,

PLANNING

AND

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT
1

Executive Summary

1.1

In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this report lists the
actions from the meeting on 14 November 2016, those responsible for completing
each action and their current status.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the 14 November
2016 meeting of the Committee.

Minute

Status/
Responsible Date Completed

Action

There are no action updates to be reported.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Part I
Item No: 8
Main authors: Kirsten Roberts
Executive Member: Helen Bromley
All Wards
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 30 JANUARY 2017
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, RESOURCES ENVIRONMENT &
CULTURAL SERVICES
GARDEN WASTE COLLECTION REPORT
1

Executive Summary

1.1

On the 9th January 2017, Cabinet agreed to introduce a charge for garden
waste collections. It is proposed that the scheme will be introduced in the next
financial year.

1.2

This report sets out some key information about how the service will operate.
In addition to this, the Frequently Asked Questions are provided in Appendix 2
which will be continually reviewed and updated throughout the implementation
and roll-out of the scheme.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

The Committee note the contents of the report and Appendices.

3

Explanation
Payments

3.1

Initially, residents will be able to make a payment for the garden waste
subscription service online or by telephone to the Contact Centre, using a
direct debit or credit card. It is anticipated that, eventually, residents will be
able to sign up to the subscription scheme using direct debit payment method.

3.2

Those who do not join the subscription service will not have their garden
waste collected.
Data Management System

3.3

Once a subscription payment has been made, the property address will be
added to an electronic database system, which will enable collection crews,
the Contact Centre and council officers to identify which properties have
subscribed to the service.
Communications

3.4

Information about the scheme will be communicated to residents through
leaflet deliveries, the Council’s website and social media channels.

Page 7

3.5

In addition to this, a confirmation letter will also be sent to residents who take
up the service, providing further information about the scheme, along with a
set of visual ‘subscription stickers’ for the brown bin(s).

3.6

The subscription fee covers a 12 month period from 1 st April – 31st March.
Residents can sign up anytime throughout the year, however, the full fee will
still apply.

3.7

Subscriptions will be subject to the terms and conditions provided in Appendix
1.
Collections

3.8

When the scheme commences, collection days will remain the same as they
currently are. Once the scheme is established, collection days may change as
collection rounds are reviewed and optimised for efficiency. Residents will be
contacted by letter or leaflet to advise them of any collection day change.

3.9

Residents will be able to purchase a subscription for a second brown bin and
present up to two brown bins on their collection day.

3.10

Information will be provided to residents about what items can be put in each
bin; however it is important to note the key changes:


Residents will not be able to present garden waste in the black
refuse bin; if this does happen, the bin will be deemed as
contaminated by crews and will not be collected.



Residents will not be able to present kitchen food waste in the brown
bin; if this does happen, the bin will be deemed as contaminated by
crews and will not be collected.



Residents will not be able to present shredded paper in the brown
bin. Residents will be advised to place this in the inner paper box of
the blue lidded bin for recycling.

Garden Waste Sacks
3.11

Once the subscription charge commences, the garden sack scheme will be
phased out over the Summer. During this period, sacks presented will only be
collected if a resident has subscribed to the scheme. Information about when
the sack scheme will stop will be communicated to residents.
Service Disruption and Missed Collections

3.12

From time to time, there will be service disruptions and missed collections and
these will be managed in line with the Council’s existing collection policies.
Other Garden Waste Sources

3.13

Garden waste from other sources e.g. schools and places of worship and
other establishments that generate household waste will also be able to
subscribe to the garden waste scheme.
Implications
Page 8

4

Legal Implications

4.1

There are no legal implications associated with the recommendation.

5

Financial Implications

5.1

There are no direct financial implications for the Council arising from this
recommendation.

6

Risk Management Implications

6.1

No significant risks have been identified as part of the recommendation.

7

Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1

There are no known security and terrorism implications associated with this
recommendation.

8

Procurement Implications

8.1

There are no known procurement implications associated with this
recommendation.

9

Climate Change Implications

9.1

The introduction of a garden waste collection charge will allow the council to
maintain a high recycling rate, whilst continuing to divert garden waste from
landfill.

9.2

Food waste may be re-directed to the black refuse bin, until such time as an
alternative collection and treatment solution can be found. This will slightly
increase the amount of waste disposed of through landfill or energy recovery.
However, food waste prevention and home composting will also be promoted
to reduce the impact on climate change.

10

Equality and Diversity

10.1

An Equality Impact Assessment has been carried out in connection with the
proposals that are set out in this report and no significant differential impacts
were found. Residents on the assisted waste collection will continue to
receive garden waste collections as previously agreed if they choose to
subscribe to the service.

Name of author
Title
Date

Kirsten Roberts
Community and Environment Services Manager
10th January 2017

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Garden Waste Collection Charging
The council has agreed to introduce a £35 annual charge for brown bin collections across Welwyn Hatfield
in the next financial year. The full report, approved by Cabinet outlining the proposals, is available to
view here.
The next step is to present details of how the service will work to the council’s Environment Overview and
Scrutiny Committee on 30 January. The report will be available from 20 January here. More information,
including how to subscribe to the service, will be available after this meeting.

Impact of the changes
How can you introduce this charge when some of the community has expressed views against
these proposals?
We have some very tough choices to make in finding ways to bridge our funding gap.
The council’s core government funding has been halved to £4m in 2016/17, and this will be reduced
by another 37% by 2019/20.
We have worked hard to deliver efficiencies without impacting on services, saving £11m since 2010.
But despite these efforts, there remains a £2m budget gap and we have to find alternative ways of
funding services.
Aren’t brown bin collections covered by my council tax?
Council tax is a statutory charge based on the occupation and ownership of a property. It helps pay
for our services, but we only get to keep 13% of what’s collected. The rest goes to Hertfordshire
County Council, the police and town and parish councils. Currently your council tax contributes to the
cost of running this service but it doesn’t cover the full cost and we must now consider other ways of
funding brown bin collections.
Local authorities do not bill residents only for the services they make use of. Nor do they make
deductions from council tax based on non-use of a particular service, or when additional charges or
fees are introduced.
How do you know you’ll make £400,000 in savings?
A free brown bin collection service costs £1.1m to deliver and not all residents use it. Many councils
across the UK have already introduced charges for brown bin collections and this figure is based on
the average uptake in those areas.
Why £35? How has this been worked out?
The average charge nationally for brown bin collections is £41.22 per year, with some councils
charging over £90. We consulted on a number of different options and, taking all factors into
consideration, are introducing a £35 charge.
What other ways of saving money have been considered?
The council has generated £11m of savings and efficiencies since 2010. Each year our savings are
set out in detail in our budget papers. Our budget proposals for 17/18 are outlined in a report to
Cabinet here and include a further £1.3m in efficiency savings. The council’s Medium Term Financial
Strategy sets out areas we can balance our budget in the years ahead.
Why is stopping winter collections not an option?
We have considered all feasible alternatives to introducing an annual charge. Stopping the collections
over winter months would not come close to generating the level of savings we need to help bridge
the funding gap.

Page 11

Is the council worried about an increase in fly-tipping in light of the survey results (e.g. 24%
say “dump it”) or pollution (19% say “burn it”)?
Over half of councils in the UK are charging for garden waste collections, including Three Rivers in
Hertfordshire, and there is no evidence to indicate a rise in fly-tipping or pollution. We will also be
encouraging alternative ways to dispose of garden waste responsibly, including home composting.
Won’t this have a negative impact on recycling rates?
We do not expect a significant reduction in recycling rates and hope most residents will either pay for
the service, take their garden waste to their nearest household recycling centre or compost at home.
What about food waste?
Residents will initially be asked to put their food waste in their black bins. We will be re-tendering our
existing waste and recycling contract for 2020 onwards and that will give us an opportunity to review
the different options for food waste collection. In the meantime, changes to waste processing costs
may provide an opportunity to introduce a financially sustainable alternative much sooner. We will
also be promoting better food waste management to help keep waste diverted from landfill.
Leaves from council trees fall into my garden, why should I have to pay for them to be
collected?
We look after around 45,000 individual trees, plus tree belt and woodland areas. In addition there are
many thousands of privately owned trees - all of these contribute to the look and feel of the borough.
We hope they are valued by residents across Welwyn Hatfield in all seasons, and any downside of a
few weeks of leaf fall each year are felt to be outweighed by the benefits of living in such a green and
pleasant area.
There are alternative ways of clearing autumn leaves, including home composting and recycling them
into leaf mould – an excellent soil conditioner. The Royal Horticultural Society and the BBC Gardening
Guides have some easy to follow tips on how to do this.

Service information
Further details on how the paid for service would work will be presented to our cross-party
Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee (EOSC) on 30 January.
How will you know if people have paid?
Once a payment is processed, you will be added to an electronic data management system which will
tell the crews who has paid. You would also be sent a sticker with a unique reference number for
each bin paid for.
Is the garden waste collection service compulsory?
No, you don’t have to subscribe to the service. Only those properties that have chosen to subscribe
will have their garden waste collected. If you do not wish to use the service, you will be responsible
for ensuring that your garden waste is managed and disposed of correctly. You can do this by taking
your garden waste to your local Household Waste and Recycling Centre or composting at home.
What will happen to unused brown bins?
Initially, residents who don’t subscribe to the service would be asked to keep their brown bin at home
(bins are assigned to a property, not to the occupant/s). This will give people time to consider the
benefits of the service. At a later date we will review the collection of unused brown bins.

Page 12

Could I have more than one brown bin?
Yes, the council agreed a £60 charge for a second bin to allow residents to recycle more of their
garden waste, if needed. This higher charge for a second bin offsets the additional costs a second bin
creates.
How will you stop people putting garden waste in their black bins?
Garden waste will not be permitted in black bins and any that are found to be contaminated will not be
collected.
When can I sign up and pay?
We will be providing more details, explaining where and how to pay, following the meeting on 30
January.
Can I sign up part way through the year?
Yes, residents will be able to sign up to the service throughout the year. However, the price will
remain at £35 to cover collections up until 31 March 2018.
Having just one renewal date means the service is easier to administer, which will keep the service
cost down for its users. It also helps prevent people opting in/out for short periods, which complicates
the management of collection rounds and would add further expense to the overall service.
Would we be able to share with neighbours?
Yes, you will be able to share a bin between neighbours. However, the bin can only be allocated to
one address.
What will stop someone swapping bins?
You will be sent a sticker with a unique reference code assigned to your address and only bins with
the correct number corresponding to the right address will be collected.
What would I do with my shredded paper?
Shredded paper can go into the blue-lidded recycling bin and placed in the newspaper recycling
caddie.

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 2: GARDEN WASTE TERMS AND CONDITIONS























The subscription fee covers a 12 month period, commencing 1st April – 31st
March. If you join part-way through the year, the full subscription still applies.
You will not be entitled to a refund if you cancel your subscription before the
end of the 12 month period.
Collections will not commence until a subscription payment has been made.
(Please note, it may take up to 10 Working Days for your property to be added
to the collection schedule once payment has been made).
Subscriptions cannot be transferred to other addresses within the borough.
Brown bins remain the property of Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council and are
assigned the address. If you move house, please do not take your bins with
you.
The Householder is responsible for maintaining the condition of the wheeled
bin. If the wheeled bin is damaged or lost, the Council’s bin replacement fees
will apply.
Householders will be required to present brown bins in line with the Council’s
requirements under Section 46 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990.
Brown bin collections may be suspended/cancelled at the Council’s discretion.
Under these circumstances, no rebate will be given.
In severe weather, waste collections may be suspended without notice.
Guidance for all collection services and updates will be posted on the
Council’s website www.welhat.gov.uk. If you wish to receive notifications,
please sign up to the text message service.
During cold weather, we will try to empty your brown bin; however this may
not be possible if the contents of your bin are frozen. A return collection will
not be made under these circumstances.
No rebates will be given for any missed collections or service disruption.
Only garden waste must be placed in the bin. Please refer to the Council’s
website or collection calendar for further guidance about what you can put in
your bin.
Contaminated bins will not be emptied. A return collection will not be made
under these circumstances. It is the responsibility of the resident to sort the
contents of the bin and remove contamination prior to the next collection.
Overflowing or excess green waste placed around wheeled bins will not be
emptied. The bin lid must be closed for safety reasons.
These terms and conditions will be revised and updated, as required. Please
check our website for up to date details.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
Part I
Item No: 9
Main author: Claire Nicholls
Executive Member: Cllr Helen Bromley
Wards: ALL
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 30 JANUARY 2017
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, RESOURCES ENVIRONMENT &
CULTURAL SERVICES
ENVIRONMENT SERVICES 2ND QUARTER 2016/17
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report combines Environment Services information and Serco’s customer
satisfaction performance for Q2 2016/17.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee note the contents of the attached report.

3

Explanation

3.1

The Serco/WHBC partnership has been established in accordance with Council
policy and is being monitored in accordance with the agreed Monitoring
Framework. There are no new policy implications arising from this report.

3.2

Serco through an independent polling company are required to provide quarterly
and annual reports on their performance in the activities of recycling, cleansing,
refuse and grounds maintenance work.

3.3

This report is the forty-third consecutive quarterly independent customer
satisfaction survey performed by a polling company since the first one in April
2006 on behalf of Serco and Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council.

3.4

Overall satisfaction across all environmental services has decreased marginally
this quarter to 75.5%, in comparison to Q1.

3.5

The total refuse to landfill in Q2 has continued to remain low and reduced
compared to Q2 2015/16, to approximately 43 kilograms/resident. It is well below
the target for this quarter of 52 kilograms/resident. This is a significant
improvement in performance.

3.6

The recycling rate in Q2 increased to just over 53% (compared to 50.7% in Q2
2015/16).The dry recycling rate (i.e. material recycled from the blue-lidded bin
and recycling banks) and the composting rate have stayed the same as the
previous quarter. Satisfaction of the recycling and composting collection services
are on target.

3.7

The total number of customer reported missed bins is 374 per 100,000. This is a
marked improvement compared to 559 per 100,000 in Q2 2015/16 and within the
target of 690 per 100,000.

Page 17

3.8

Satisfaction for cleansing in Q2 was 68.3%, compared to Q2 2015/16 (75.1%).
Satisfaction for grass verges hedges and shrubs was lower at 63.5%, while
satisfaction for planters, shrub beds and baskets and satisfaction for greens and
open spaces have both increased to 82.7% and 77.4% respectively.
Implications

4

Legal Implications

4.1

There are no legal implications associated with the recommendation.

5

Financial Implications

5.1

There are no direct financial implications for the Council arising from this
recommendation.

6

Risk Management Implications

6.1

No significant risks have been identified as part of the recommendation.

7

Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1

There are no known security and terrorism implications associated with this
recommendation.

8

Procurement Implications

8.1

There are no known
recommendation.

9

Climate Change Implications

9.1

There are no climate change implications associated with this recommendation.

10

Equality and Diversity

10.1

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out in connection with
the proposals that are set out in this report as the recommendation does not
require a policy or service change.

Name of author
Title
Date

procurement

Claire Nicholls
Waste Services Officer
20th December 2016

Page 18

implications

associated

with

this

APPENDIX 1: ENVIRONMENT SERVICES AND SERCO PERFORMANCE Q2
2016/17
1

Introduction

1.1

This report provides the Q2 2016/17 summary of Environment Services and
Serco’s performance. This report covers waste and recycling, street cleansing
and grounds maintenance performance information.

2

Recycling Performance
In Q2, the overall recycling rate increased to just over 53%.

3

Total Waste to Landfill/Disposal Performance

3.1

The total amount of refuse sent to landfill/disposal has continued to remain
low this quarter at 43 kilograms/resident. This is well below the target for this
quarter of 52 kilograms/resident.
Figure 6: Recycling Rate and Total Waste to Landfill/Disposal
Refuse to Landfill/hd

Recycling Rate

80

60.00%

70

50.00%

40

30.00%

30

20.00%

20
10.00%

10
0

0.00%

Page 19

Recycling Rate (%)

40.00%

50

Q4 (09/10)
Q1 (10/11)
Q2 (10/11)
Q3 (10/11)
Q4 (10/11)
Q1 (11/12)
Q2 (11/12)
Q3 (11/12)
Q4 (11/12)
Q1 (12/13)
Q2 (12/13)
Q3 (12/13)
Q4 (12/13)
Q1 (13/14)
Q2 (13/14)
Q3 (13/14)
Q4 (13/14)
Q1 (14/15)
Q2 (14/15)
Q3 (14/15)
Q4 (14/15)
Q1 (15/16)
Q2 (15/16)
Q3 (15/16)
Q4 (15/16)
Q1 (16/17)
Q2 (16/17)

Waste to Landfill (kg)

60

4

Serco Satisfaction Performance

4.1

Refuse Collection:

4.1.1 In Q2, satisfaction of refuse collections decreased by 9% to 76.4% (compared
to 85.4% in Q2 2015/16). Generally residents are satisfied with the service,
but some dissatisfaction was noted in relation to the perceived infrequency of
collection, the bin being too small and litter left behind after collections.
4.2

Recycling Collection (blue-lidded bin):

4.2.1 In Q2, satisfaction of recycling collections decreased by 2.9% to 74.7%
(compared to 77.6% in Q2 2015/16). Generally residents are satisfied with the
service, but some dissatisfaction was noted in relation to the perceived
infrequency of collections, missed collections and recycling bins not being big
enough.
4.3

Organic Waste Collection (brown bin):

4.3.1 In Q2, satisfaction of organic waste collections increased by 2% to 85.7%
(compared to 83.7% in Q2 2015/16). Out of 350 residents surveyed, 271
(77.4%) stated that they used their brown bins. Generally residents are
satisfied with the service, but some dissatisfaction was noted in relation to the
frequency of collections, particularly in summer.
Figure 1: Summary of Serco Collection Satisfaction Performance
Refuse Collection Satisfaction

Recycling Collection Satisfaction

Organic Collection Satisfaction

Q4 (09/10)
Q1 (10/11)
Q2 (10/11)
Q3 (10/11)
Q4 (10/11)
Q1 (11/12)
Q2 (11/12)
Q3 (11/12)
Q4 (11/12)
Q1 (12/13)
Q2 (12/13)
Q3 (12/13)
Q4 (12/13)
Q1 (13/14)
Q2 (13/14)
Q3 (13/14)
Q4 (13/14)
Q1 (14/15)
Q2 (14/15)
Q3 (14/15)
Q4 (14/15)
Q1 (15/16)
Q2 (15/16)
Q3 (15/16)
Q4 (15/16)
Q1 (16/17)

100.0%
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%

Page 20

4.4

Street Cleaning:

4.4.1 In Q2, satisfaction with street cleaning was lower at 68.3% (compared to
75.1% in Q2 2015/16). Some dissatisfaction was noted in relation to a
perceived lack of cleansing or the frequency of cleansing. However, it should
be acknowledged of those that were satisfied with street cleaning, 73.8%
stated they were pleased with the standard of cleansing and roads were clean
and tidy.

Figure 2: Summary of Serco Street Cleaning Satisfaction Performance
Cleanliness of streets

Q4 (09/10)
Q1 (10/11)
Q2 (10/11)
Q3 (10/11)
Q4 (10/11)
Q1 (11/12)
Q2 (11/12)
Q3 (11/12)
Q4 (11/12)
Q1 (12/13)
Q2 (12/13)
Q3 (12/13)
Q4 (12/13)
Q1 (13/14)
Q2 (13/14)
Q3 (13/14)
Q4 (13/14)
Q1 (14/15)
Q2 (14/15)
Q3 (14/15)
Q4 (14/15)
Q1 (15/16)
Q2 (15/16)
Q3 (15/16)
Q4 (15/16)
Q1 (16/17)
Q2 (16/17)

90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%

4.5

Grounds Maintenance

4.5.1 In Q2, the satisfaction of greens and open spaces increased by 5.8% to
82.7% (compared to 76.9% in Q2 2015/16).
4.5.2 In Q2, the satisfaction of planters, shrub beds and baskets increased by 2% to
77.4% (compared to 75.4% in Q2 2015/16).
4.5.3 In Q2, the satisfaction of grass verges, hedges and shrubs decreased by
9.3% to 63.5% (compared to 72.8% in Q2 2015/16). Some dissatisfaction was
noted in relation to overgrown hedges and poor maintenance of verges.
However, there appears to be some misinterpretation between residents’
expectation and contract requirements. For example, summer shrub work only
involves cutting back trespass, whereas residents believe the whole shrub
should be attended to, which can be perceived as non-completion of work by
Serco.

Page 21

Figure 3: Summary of Serco Grounds Maintenance Satisfaction Performance
Greens and Open Spaces Satisfaction

Planters, Shrub Bed & Baskets Satisfaction

Grass Verges, Hedges & Shrubs Satisfaction

Q4 (09/10)
Q1 (10/11)
Q2 (10/11)
Q3 (10/11)
Q4 (10/11)
Q1 (11/12)
Q2 (11/12)
Q3 (11/12)
Q4 (11/12)
Q1 (12/13)
Q2 (12/13)
Q3 (12/13)
Q4 (12/13)
Q1 (13/14)
Q2 (13/14)
Q3 (13/14)
Q4 (13/14)
Q1 (14/15)
Q2 (14/15)
Q3 (14/15)
Q4 (14/15)
Q1 (15/16)
Q2 (15/16)
Q3 (15/16)
Q4 (15/16)
Q1 (16/17)
Q2 (16/17)

100.0%
90.0%
80.0%
70.0%
60.0%
50.0%
40.0%
30.0%
20.0%
10.0%
0.0%

5

Missed Bins

5.1

In Q2, the number of customer reported missed bins per 100,000 remains is
374. This is a great deal better than the target and is a marked improvement
compared to Q2 in 2015/16.
Figure 4: Summary of Missed Bins
Serco Reported Missed Bins

Customer Reported Missed Bins

Missed bins per 100,000

1,200
1,000

220

800
600

177
162

200

184
830

400
500

648
415

99
202

91
262

0
July 16/17 August 16/17 September
16/17

Page 22

July 16/17 August 16/17 September
16/17

6

Resident complaints

6.1

There were a total of 94 complaints in Q2 relating to grounds maintenance
(e.g. grass cutting, overgrown shrubs and hedges), street cleansing and the
bin collection service (e.g. missed bins, returning of bins, bin stores and
collection times).

6.2

Of these, 51 complaints were justified. This compares with 41 justified
complaints in Q2 of 2015/16. The top three complaint types relate to missed
household bins, the general standard of the waste collection service and
grounds maintenance.
Figure 5: Summary of Complaints
60
Justified

Unjustified

Number of complaints

50
40
30
20
10
0
Q2 2015/16

Q2 2016/17

7

Fly-Tipping

7.1

Following a number of concerns raised within the community, a Member-led
task force was set up at the start of 2016/17 to investigate the options and
develop an action plan to more effectively deal with the increase of incidences
of fly-tipping across the Borough.

7.2

The action plan included a number of tasks to ensure that:



Fly-tip clearances are undertaken in a timely manner;



Fly-tipping is prevented through engagement and education; and



Enforcement action is taken against those who fly-tip, where possible.
The table below provides an update actions taken.

Page 23

Objective

Proposed Task

Delivery Update

Ensure
clearances
are
undertaken
in a timely
manner:

Set up a ‘rapid
response’ clearance
team. Clearances
from a number of
hot-spots to be
cleared proactively
and within 5
Working Days of
request.



Serco are now clearing up to 95% of fly-tips
within 5 days.



Fly-tips not cleared within this time frame
may require specialist clearance equipment,
land ownership checks or improved access
etc.



Serco are proactively clearing fly-tipping in a
number of hot-spots across the Borough.

Provide clearance
quotations within
76hrs for private
land.



Community and Environment Officers
contact private land owners to advise them of
their responsibilities with regard to clearing
fly-tipping on their land.



Serco provide clearance and disposal
quotations for private land owners, as
required.



Community and Environment Officers work
with the Environmental Health team to issue
land clearance notices, if required.

Housing to continue 
to provide additional
‘Waste Cage Days’

Waste cage days are provided throughout
the year at different Housing Trust locations.
These events allow Housing Tenants to get
rid of unwanted household items free of
charge.

Enforcement
Action to be
taken
against
those who
fly-tip where
possible:

To design and
introduce new
promotional
material to advise of
waste management
responsibilities.



Working with the Communications team, the
Environment Services team have designed
and rolled out new promotional material. This
has included posting messages and updates
on the Council’s social media accounts and
leaflet deliveries.



A number of Serco cleansing vehicles have
been re-branded with new livery so they
have a visible presence promoting the flytipping initiative in the borough.

Page 24

Objective

Proposed Task

Delivery Update

To introduce
signage in fly-tip
‘hotspot’ areas and
work with Housing
Trust to develop
new signage.



This is ongoing. Leaflets have been
designed for housing properties and
residents living in flats to provide advice on
waste collections and proper use of bins
stores.



New signage is being designed for fly-tipping
hot-spots.



Officers are continuing to take enforcement
action against those for the mismanagement
of waste and fly-tipping.



Officers are currently reviewing whether it
would be feasible to be responsible for a
number of portable CCTV cameras
throughout the Borough that can be located
at fly-tipping hotspots; either on a permanent
or temporary basis.

Use of additional
legal support and
external counsel for
advice, drafting and
representation for
fly-tipping
prosecutions.
Work with Police,
when initial
evidence indicates
organised criminal
activity. CCTV
provision by Police.

8

Communications

8.1

Recycling calendars and leaflets were delivered to households across the
borough during September 2016.

8.2

An additional leaflet focussing on fly-tipping and duty of care was also
delivered to all households during September 2016.

8.3

Garden waste consultation was launched 1st November 2016 and ran until
28th November 2016.

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 10
Part I
Item No: 10
Main author: Cheryll Brown
Executive Member: Bernard Sarson
All Wards
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 30 JANUARY 2017
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND
GOVERNANCE)
EAT OUT EAT WELL HEALTHY EATING AWARD
1

Executive Summary

1.1

The Council’s Health and Wellbeing Strategic Framework identifies six priorities
to help us build communities that promote good physical and mental health. One
of those priorities is the long term vision that Welwyn Hatfield will become a
“Healthy Food” borough. This means that we will have a clear approach to
healthy and safe food provision across the borough, taking into account food
safety, supply, support to businesses together with enforcement when
necessary, thereby enabling people to make informed healthy choices

1.2

This report sets out information regarding the “Eat Out, Eat Well” initiative which
is a healthy eating award that the Public Health & Protection Team are planning
to deliver with our compliant food businesses. This award will help to promote
healthier food choices.

1.2

This intervention will support the public in being able to make informed lifestyles
choices with the ultimate aim of improve the health and wellbeing of our
residents.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

For members to:


note the introduction of this healthy eating award for our food businesses
and



to support the scheme by promoting and working towards the award in all
our Council owned facilities.

3

Explanation

3.1

Obesity has a huge economic cost to society. It currently costs 5.1 billion for the
NHS and 70 billion to society as a whole nationally (2014/15).

3.2

Public Health England Health Profiles 2015 have identified that 52.7% of adults
and 28.6% of children in Year 6 (as measured as part of the national
measurement programme) were overweight in Welwyn Hatfield.

3.3

Obesity has now become a national epidemic. There is no simple or isolated
resolution to this as the causes are a complex combination of issues including
significant changes in food culture. In fact one in every six meals is now eaten
out of the home.
Page 27

3.4

The introduction of a healthy food award will aim to reduce obesity while
respecting consumer choice, economic realities and ultimately the need to eat.

3.5

Eat Out, Eat Well was originally developed in Surrey and first piloted in June
2009. The award is now operational across eight counties in southern England;
Welwyn Hatfield will be the first authority in Hertfordshire to join this scheme.

3.6

The award works on a three tier system, bronze, silver and gold. Awards are
based upon a scoring system that takes into account the food on offer, cooking
methods and how the caterer promotes it to their customers. It focuses on
keeping fat, sugar and salt to a minimum; making fruit and vegetables widely
available; basing main meals on starchy carbohydrates and marketing and
promoting healthier options.

3.7

The award will only be targeted towards food businesses that cater for the
general public and are compliant with food hygiene and food standards
legislation.

3.8

Businesses taking part have the option to receive free nutrition training, building
the skills and knowledge base of employees. Businesses will be listed on the Eat
Out Eat Well website, can use the branding associated with the award and will
receive a certificate and window sticker. All of the branding can incorporate the
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council logo.

3.9

Public Health & Protection will feature the award in Council publications, social
media communications and engage local newspapers in the promotion of these
participating businesses. The award may provide a competitive edge and
increase customer satisfaction as demand for healthier choices continues to
grow.

3.10

It is our intention that the project will initially start in Council owned facilities. This
will demonstrate a commitment from the Council to take bold and brave action to
address obesity. It also recognising the important role that the Council can play in
improving the future health and wellbeing of residents.

4

Legal Implication(s)

4.1

There are no legal implications associated with this report. However, it is
important to note that this project supports the government’s Childhood Obesity
Plan for action published in August 2016 and links into the Councils Health and
Wellbeing Strategy.

5

Financial Implication(s)

5.1

There is a budget allocated for this project. This has been funded through
Hertfordshire County Councils Public Health Partnership Fund “The District Offer”
and the project plan has been agreed with the County Council.

5.2

It is difficult to measure the cost saving to society achieved by this intervention,
but there are cost calculator tools available which we may be able to use as part
of the evaluation process.

Page 28

6

Risk Management Implications

6.1

The main risks related to this proposal are:

6.2

The Council is at risk from criticism from central government if it does not design
food environments within public sector buildings, services and spaces that makes
a healthy food choice an option as specified in the Childhood Obesity Plan.

6.3

The public are at risk if the council does not take any action to intervene in
reducing obesity in the resident population.

6.4

Our work with local business, especially small and medium sized enterprises
helps the local economy and business growth, thereby mitigating associated
risks.

7

Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1

Food security is a recognised risk1 and environmental health work and the
council’s role as a category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies Act can
assist with the mitigation of this risk.

8

Procurement Implication(s)

8.1

There are no procurement implications.
Climate Change Implication(s)

8.2

None directly arising from this report.

9

Link to Corporate Priorities

9.1

The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities “maintain
a safe and healthy community”, “protect and enhance the environment”, “help
build a strong local economy”, “engage with our communities and provide value
for money”.

10

Equality and Diversity

10.1

An Equality Impact Assessment has not yet been carried been carried out in
connection with this initiative.

Name of author
Title
Date

Cheryll Brown
Team Leader (Public Health and Protection)
December 2016

1

See for example http://www.food.gov.uk/sites/default/files/pas96-2014-food-drink-protection-guide.pdf
accessed 10/03/2016

Page 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Part I
Item No: 11
Main author: Jeannette Hollingsworth
Executive Member: Bernard Sarson
All Wards
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 30 JANUARY 2017
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND
GOVERNANCE
PEST CONTROL UPDATE
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report provides members with information relating to the pest control service
provided by the council appointed contractor, SDK Environmental Ltd (“Dial a
Pest”). It highlights the extent of pest control treatments and activities during the
period March 2016 to November 2016. It also provides information on the levels
of pest control enforcement action undertaken by the council’s Public Health and
Protection Service during the same period.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

For members to note the report, the performance of the contractor and the work
and services that have been provided.

2.2

For future update reports to be provided annually.

3

Explanation

3.1

The duties on Local Authorities are to keep their own land free from rats and
mice and to enforce that other owners/occupiers do the same.

3.2

The Council provides a subsidised contracted pest control service that is
available to householders, regardless of tenure, throughout the district. This
service also provides treatment for Council owned land and buildings and assists
in the Council fulfilling its statutory functions under the Prevention of Damage of
Pests Act 1949 (PDPA). The service runs independently from the Council with
customers needing to contact the contractor’s call centre directly to arrange and
pay for treatment.

3.3

This report updates members on this service and demonstrates the demand for
pest control treatments since March 2016.

3.4

Public health problems and consequences associated with pest infestations
remain the same today as they were in Victorian times. The public health
significance of pests is widely documented. Rats, mice, flies, fleas, bedbugs and
cockroaches are detrimental to residents` physical, social, health and wellbeing.

3.5

Without effective pest management, pest infestations will increase and will result
in increasing incidents of pest borne disease, damage to buildings and risk to
food businesses.

3.6

Pest control remains an important public service to residents of the Borough and
is of particular relevance to the most disadvantaged. The service is also
Page 31

important to meet future challenges brought about by climate change and by
increased movement of goods, animals and people. In providing this affordable
service the council will continue to play a key role in protecting public health.
3.7

The existing contract covers a range of pests and is available to all borough
residents. The contract also covers communal parts of properties managed
through the community housing trust. Additionally, the contract provides pest
control services for council owned land and buildings (excluding the museum).

3.8

The contract with SDK expired on 31 March 2015. A Member Procurement Board
was set up in 2014 to oversee the procurement of a new contractor to provide
pest control services. The Procurement Board awarded the new four year
contract to SDK Environmental Ltd commencing on 1 April 2015.

3.9

The new contract enabled the charges for pest control services to all residents of
the Borough to remain the same, there has been no increase. This was one of
the key objectives of the contract procurement process.

Pest control charges 2015 - 2016

Type of pest

Domestic

Domestic Premises

Premises

Concessionary prices (including

Price (including

VAT)

VAT)
Rats
£30
Mice
£30
Wasps (one nest)**
£35
Additional Wasps nests (if treated at the £10 per nest
same time)
Hornets
£30
Fleas
£30
Cockroaches
£30
bed bugs
£30

3.10

Free
£15
£18
£10 per nest
£15
£15
£15
£15

Regular quarterly contract review meetings are held between the Council and
SDK. These are an effective way of managing the contract and building a good
client/contractor relationship. Issues ranging from quality control, technical
advice, vulnerable people, complaints and approach to complex cases are
discussed. Agreed minutes are kept from these meetings.

Page 32

3.11

The graphs below set out the numbers of pest control calls made for treatment
and pest type for the period March 2016 to November 2016.

2 1

30

11
8
1 1 3

52

33

11
1 1 4
7
1

211

30

10
2 1 1

260

32

8 10

126

38

2 5 3
6 3 5
7
2

29

37

6
1 1 2
8

34

1

40

13

3 1 1
5
1 1

46

6
1

MAR-16

APR-16

MAY-16

JUN-16

JUL-16

AUG-16

SEP-16

OCT-16

NOV-16

PEST CONTROL CALLS
BED BUGS
FLEAS
MICE
RATS
WASPS
BED BUGS
COCKROACHES
FLEAS
MICE
RATS
WASPS
BED BUGS
BLACK ANTS
COCKROACHES
FLEAS
HORNETS
MICE
RATS
WASPS
BED BUGS
BLACK ANTS
COCKROACHES
FLEAS
MICE
RATS
WASPS
BED BUGS
BLACK ANTS
COCKROACHES
FLEAS
HORNETS
MICE
RATS
WASPS
BED BUGS
BLACK ANTS
MICE
RATS
WASPS
BED BUGS
BLACK ANTS
COCKROACHES
MICE
MOTHS
RATS
BED BUGS
BLACK ANTS
FLEAS
MICE
RATS
WASPS
BED BUGS
FLEAS
MICE
RATS
WASPS

Page 33

3.12

Statutory pest control enforcement work is carried out in response to
investigations regarding private land where the owner/occupier is unwilling to
take action to eliminate a pest infestation or where food and harbourage for rats
or mice is present. The chart below shows the number of notices served under
the Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949 (PDPA). It relates to the number of
formal notices served.

Pest Control Notices Served
12

Notices Served

10
8
6
4
2

2014

2015

2016

November

October

September

August

July

May

April

November

August

July

April

February

January

November

July

May

April

January

September

August

July

June

May

April

0

2017

Financial Year Ending

3.13

Customer service feedback is assessed on a quarterly basis.

4

Legal Implication(s)

4.1

The council is not obliged to provide a pest control service, but is under a legal
duty to keep its own land free from rats and mice and to enforce the Prevention
of Damage by Pests Act 1949 throughout the borough.

4.2

The council and contractor are generally required to comply with the Health and
Safety at Work etc Act 1974. Sometimes this results in certain requests for
service not being undertaken by the Contractor due to risk to their staff. For
example, they will not enter unboarded lofts or work at height where there is a
risk of injury.

4.3

There is also more specific legislation relating to use of pesticides which needs
to be complied with, for example the Control of Pesticides Regulations.

Page 34

5

Financial Implication(s)

5.1

None directly arising from this report. A budget is in place to deliver the contract
and to provide day to day enforcement activities. As with any area of
enforcement if a major case were to occur then this would incur additional
budgetary expense.

6

Risk Management Implications

6.1

The risks to public health from certain pests are well understood and
documented. The council pest control contract can assist with reducing such
risks.

6.2

The council is at risk of legal challenge if it fails to meet its legal duties under the
Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 1949

6.3

Inappropriate use of pesticide products can create risks to children and wildlife,
employing the services of a competent contractor reduces this risk.

7

Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1

Certain pesticide products could be potentially be used for inappropriate
purposes, employing the services of a competent contractor reduces this risk.

8

Procurement Implication(s)

8.1

The pest control contract was tendered through the appropriate council
procedures under the supervision of a member procurement board. The contract
was awarded to SDK Environmental Ltd again following this process.

9

Climate Change Implication(s)

9.1

As the climate changes it is likely that the range of pests we will see in the UK
may change. This may have longer term implications for the scope of the
contract and the services which are provided.

10

Link to Corporate Priorities

10.1

The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities “maintain
a safe and healthy community” and “protect and enhance the environment and is
linked to statutory provisions under pest control legislation.

11

Equality and Diversity

11.1

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has been carried out in connection with the
council pest control service. The results of that EIA have been used to inform the
contract provision, especially as regards to vulnerable clients

Name of author
Title
Date

Jeannette Hollingsworth
Team Leader (Public Health and Protection)
December 2016

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
Part I
Item No: 12
Main author: Jeannette Hollingsworth
Executive Member: Bernard Sarson
All wards
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 30 JANUARY 2017
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND
GOVERNANCE
UPDATE ON OPERATION REPRISE AND OPERATION BALSAM
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report updates members on the work carried out by the Public Health and
Protection Team in relation to out of hours noise work. This is provided by three
distinct services:

1.2

Operation Reprise – this provides a response service every Friday and Saturday
night throughout the year between the hours 22:00 and 03:00

1.3

Operation Balsam – this provides a response service working with part of a larger
police operation targeted to coincide with the start and end of the University of
Hertfordshire academic year over a two to three week period.

1.4

Specific investigations – where noise monitoring is required a part of a complex
planning consultation, nuisance investigation or monitoring during the early hours
or at weekends.

1.5

A summary of statistics for Reprise and Balsam are provided at Appendix A

2

Recommendation

2.1

To note the work undertaken and support the continued night noise service
provided by Public Health and Protection through Operation Reprise and
Operation Balsam.

3

Explanation
Operation Reprise

3.1

Operation reprise has been a providing the residents of Welwyn Hatfield Borough
with a weekend night noise response service since 2008.

3.2

The service provides two Council officers, in a vehicle patrolling the borough and
responding to complaints of noise received by both the police force control room
and the Council call centre which are passed to the Reprise team. The Reprise
team give an immediate response to noise complaints on Friday and Saturday
nights between the hours of 22:00 and 03:00.

3.3

The team comprises of an Officer from the Environmental Health team and a
street warden. The officer has to achieve a level of competency before
authorisation and undertaking the Reprise role. The street warden is registered
and trained under the Herts Community Safety Accreditation Scheme, acts as a
driver and second person to support the authorised officer. The authorised officer
Page 37

handles calls from the police and Community Housing Trust control room and
residents. The authorised officer leads each visit and makes decisions as to the
most appropriate course of action. The authorised officer would lead any
discussion with the residents and alleged perpetrators. The second officer would
be responsible for corroborative evidence.
3.4

The risk assessment is reviewed annually. All staff are provided with the
appropriate Personal Protective Equipment including stab vests.

3.5

A dedicated Reprise mobile number is used. This number is to not to be issued
to members of the public.

3.6

An operational order, defining the specific working arrangements, is issued to
authorised officers, Street Wardens and the Police.

3.7

Case study – Loud Birthday Party.
A number of complaints were received regarding loud music and singing in
Cuffley and the complainants assumed the source was from an organised
outside event. The Reprise team investigated and found that the music was in
fact coming from a domestic property holding a large party both inside and in the
garden with amplified music and professional DJs. There were approximately 5060 people present and the music and noise could be heard up to a mile away.
The team arrived around 01.30 hours and in the words of the EHO “the music
was deafening”. It appeared as though the party was in full swing and they had
no intention of finishing. The officer advised the occupier to turn off the music and
bring people inside. Police assistance was sought and provided as there was
such a large crowd. The occupier brought the party to a close and the crowds
eventually left.
The service ensured that residents in the area did not suffer the music all night
and that the correct source of the noise was identified.
Operation Balsam

3.8

The Council and Police have worked in direct partnership with the University of
Hertfordshire to provide an extended out of hours noise service at the start and
end of the academic year since 2009. In 2013 this particular project was re
branded and known as Operation Balsam.

3.9

Police and officers from the Environmental Health team work directly together on
Operation Balsam. The police have resources to provide different patrols with a
specific remit to deal with burglaries, often against students, and other crimes as
well as a patrol working with an authorised officer to deal with noise and
antisocial behaviour issues.

3.10

The Environmental Health component of Operation Balsam consists of a police
patrol and vehicle with an authorised officer to respond to any complaints of
noise regarding any resident living in any part of the Borough over a two week
period over the hours 22:00 to 03:00.

3.11

One key aspect of the operation is to impart a message of personal safety to the
students and part of the Operational Order states that “Officers will engage with
students at every opportunity, to educate students on the standards of behaviour
expected during the coming year. In addition and where appropriate advice
relating to housing, personal safety and security will be given.”
Page 38

3.12

Therefore, Operation Balsam, both ensures that appropriate actions are taken to
deal with antisocial behaviour and noise nuisance and additionally provides a
positive message to young people that enforcement agencies are also there to
provide support and advice
A debrief is carried out by Environmental Health, the University and the Police
after each Operation with feedback given by all those involved to identify what
works well and what can be improved. The conclusion at the last debrief
identified that all went well but the key improvement required is enhanced
promotion of the service. Promotion was through a press release, tweeting,
informing all appropriate agencies and Councillors and at the University
Community Liaison forum. Data sharing between agencies was an action target
following the last debrief and was found to have improved with swift follow up
visits made by the University after an Operation Balsam visit highlighted a
problem premises.

3.13

All noise investigations follow the Enforcement Policy and take a staged
approach to enforcement. There is no exception to these Operations and where
perpetrators’ choose to ignore our words of advice a noise abatement notice will
be served. However, the vast majority of cases are resolved on site informally.

3.14

Case Study- Student Party in South Hatfield
A student property was visited during Operation Balsam on a Friday night. The
music was being played to an unacceptable level and clearly heard in within the
neighbouring property. This was witnessed by the officers on duty. The students
were spoken to on the night and the consequences explained. However, they
ignored the advice and continued to make excessive noise the following evening.
The officer on duty was able to access this information regarding the events the
previous night. Because of the levels of noise and the fact that the noise
continued a noise abatement notice was served. Monitoring was carried out on
during subsequent weeks but there were no further complaints or disturbance.

3.15

The ability to directly witness the nuisance is a key part to the success of the
night noise service.

3.16

The use of the Samsung tablet has been successful allowing officers to gain
access to encrypted data prior to visiting each premises that otherwise would not
be available while driving round the district. This is also a key part of the Risk
Assessment.

3.16

The aims of both Operation Reprise and Operation Balsam are: to provide an
immediate response to residents disturbed by noise from premises, gather
evidence, resolve the noise disturbance and take appropriate enforcement
action, carry out any appropriate follow up work and mediation on a longer term
basis to resolve ongoing noise and anti-social behaviour related complaints. We
actively encourage good joint working together with relevant agencies including
the police, the University of Hertfordshire and the Community Housing Trust.

3.17

These aims have been successfully achieved and the working relationships
between Environmental Health, the police, the University and the street wardens
are productive.

Page 39

4

Legal Implication(s)

4.1

There are legal implications if complaints of noise are not investigated. The
Council is required to investigate all complaints of noise that may fall under the
remit of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Failure to do so can be
investigated by the Local Authority Ombudsman. In addition, unsatisfied
residents are likely to issue a complaint against the service or seek their
Councillor / MP involvement.

4.2

There are legal procedures governing the investigation, and abatement of
statutory nuisances. This includes provisions as to prosecution and/or work in
default which can result in the seizure of noise making equipment.

4.3

The council has legal obligations to employees to protect their health, safety and
welfare. This includes those staff working out of hours in connection with noise
nuisance investigation and enforcement.

5

Financial Implication(s)

5.1

The funding for Operation Reprise is met by existing budgets.

5.2

Funding for Operation Balsam is entirely provided by the University of
Hertfordshire as part of contributions to assist with community initiatives

6

Risk Management Implications

6.1

The risks related to this service are:

6.2

This service helps to reduce any risks of a perceived inadequate service
provision that fails to meet customers’ needs. It also mitigates against complaints
to the local government ombudsman as the service is provided based on an
assessment of need.

6.3

There are public health risks to persons who suffer noise nuisance; this can
include increased stress levels and exacerbating existing heart conditions, high
blood pressure etc.

6.4

There are risks to staff safety in carrying out this work. These can be minimised
by appropriate control measures and staff training.

6.5

There is a resource implication providing authorised officers to work night shifts
for a two to three week period. There is an impact on the ongoing routine work of
the department. However this can be accounted for by forward planning of
workloads.

6.6

There are risks by misunderstanding of what the service can provide. It is made
clear throughout the request for service process of types of noise we can and
cannot deal with.

Page 40

7

Security and Terrorism Implications

7.1

Operation Balsam may not operate if the Police resources are redirected
because of an increased terror threat level.

8

Procurement Implications

8.1

None directly arising from this report.

9

Climate Change Implication(s)

9.1

None, though noise complaints are generally increased during warmer weather
conditions due to parties being held outside and people leaving windows open.

10

Link to Corporate Priorities

10.1

I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate
Priorities (Our Community and Our Environment), and is linked to the statutory
requirement under The Environmental Protection Act 1990.

11

Equality and Diversity
I confirm that an Equality Impact Screening Assessment (EIA) has been carried
out in connection with the proposals that are set out in this report. The results
show that this service does not provide any differential impacts in relation to any
of the 9 protected equality characteristics and that a full impact assessment is not
needed. However, as part of the scheduled review of the noise service
provisions, the screening assessment will be reviewed to see if there are any
significant changes.

Name of author
Title
Date

Jeannette Hollingsworth
Environmental Health Team Leader
10 January 2017

Appendix A - Figures for Operation Reprise
Operation Balsam Statistics

Page 41

Operation Reprise Statistics
(Calendar Year 2016)
Calls received and attended - 346
Operation Balsam Statistics
23rd September – 9th October 2016
Call profile
Students
Monitoring
Non-Student
Unknown

Number of calls
11
17
11
1

Total
40

NUMBER OF CALLS (40)
Student

Non Student

Monitoring

Unknown

3%
27%

43%

27%

Action Statistics

Number of Warnings Given
Resolved on Site

Attended Incidents

Yes
No
Yes
No
N/A
Yes
No

Page 42

1
39
19
1
20
34
6

Operation Balsam Statistics (Contd)

NUMBER OF FIRST WARNINGS GIVEN
YES

NO
2%

98%

ATTENDED INCIDENTS
YES

NO

15%

85%

Page 43

Operation Balsam Statistics
13th – 28th May 2016
Call Profile
Students
Monitoring
Non-students
Unknown

Number of calls
5
2
15
4

Total
26

NUMBER OF CALLS (26)
Student

Non Student

Monitoring

15%

19%

Unknown

8%

58%

Number of Warnings Given
Resolved on Site

Attended Incidents

Yes
No
Yes
No
n/a
Yes
No

Page 44

2
24
15
11
0
22
4

FIRST WARNINGS GIVEN
YES

NO

8%

92%

ATTENDED INCIDENTS
YES

NO

15%

85%

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13
Part I
Item No: 13
Main author: Kate Payne
Executive Member: Roger Trigg
Ward Hatfield East
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 30TH JANUARY 2017
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR PUBLIC PROTECTION PLANNING AND
GOVERNANCE
CONSIDERATION OF ADDITIONAL STREET TRADING CONSENT
1

Executive Summary

1.1

This report asks Members to consider legalising street trading in certain areas of
Hatfield Town Centre, (details in appendix A). This would enable the Town
Centre Manager to invite traders to attend appropriate events to enhance the
ambience, increase footfall and benefit businesses in Hatfield. In order for this to
happen it is necessary for Full Council to change the designation of these areas
from “prohibited streets” to “consent streets”.

2

Recommendation(s)

2.1

For members to note the content of this report and consider whether a
recommendation should be made to Full Council that:
a)

the areas marked with a red boundary on the location map at appendix
A in this report which are currently “prohibited streets” for the purpose of
street trading to be designated as “consent streets”

b)

the suggested fees for these consents should be £20-£25 per trader per
day with an annual maximum payable for the entire consent of £1155
per annum to Public Health and Protection.

c)

that the street trading consent conditions should include those items
related to food safety as set out in section 6.

3

Explanation

3.1

The council regulates street trading under the relevant statutory provisions. The
council has adopted a “prohibited and consent street” method of regulation. As
the name implies, street trading may be carried out in a designated “consent
streets” provided the consent of the council has been given through the Public
Health and Protection Team. Street trading is prohibited in a “prohibited street.”
In this context the words “street” and “street trading” have specific legal
meanings and there are exemptions along with an interface with peddler
licensing and markets legislation.

3.2

The current law dates from 1982 and the original policy was set in 1982, revised
in 1992 and reviewed in 1995. In March 2000 EOSC set up a “street trading
working party” to carry out a review of all street trading. The working party’s remit
was to consider all areas of street trading policy, including hours of trading and
suitability/viability of existing consent sites. However as a result of this review
Members found no additional streets to bring forward as consent streets.
Page 47

3.3

There are currently five street trading pitches (within the consent streets) in the
borough and a waiting list is kept for those requiring a street trading consent.
There are currently ten people who have registered an interest in obtaining a
pitch but these pitches very rarely become vacant. All pitches currently trade in
fast food.

3.4

Stalls in Hatfield town centre currently operate using Markets legislation on
Wednesdays and Saturdays. However there are occasions when events are
taking place which could be enhanced by a single trader or up to four traders but
this is not possible due to a “market” having to consist of 5 stalls or more.

3.5

Discussions with the Town Centre team reveal that for many events there is not
enough footfall to warrant five stalls/concessions so the town centre is unable to
benefit from additional traders which could encourage people to attend and
enhance the town centre offer.

3.6

Therefore members are asked to consider a proposal to enable street trading
relative to whatever event may be on offer. It is not intended to have any
permanent burger/ kebab or ice cream vans in the trading positions. Types of
events could include but are not limited to:

3.7



Music events – food related to the music (e.g. street food/ hot
doughnuts/candy floss/ specialist ice cream or frozen yoghurt)



Cooking demonstrations/ selling food to show the diversity of food
available in Hatfield and how the ingredients can be used. (eg Polish or
African food)



Healthy eating events – (eg invited traders/specialist food)



Christmas – hot chestnuts, hot chocolate, glow sticks etc



Activities relating to events (eg mini Olympics / cycling/running - invited
trader/specialist food)



Animal antics, animal crackers (pet shows) – charity stalls such as cat
survival trust etc who sell complimentary items relative to their charity.



Amusements – trampolining/ static bungies/ fairground rides



Specialist foods relating to the event eg old fashioned sweets, toffee
apples, smoothies, pimms (licence permitting) etc

The intention is to increase the footfall to Hatfield which will benefit the shops
and not to have the same offering that will divert trade from the shops. If a similar
offering is to be invited then this would be in conjunction with that business so
they could be involved with displaying their own wares at the same time for
example African food.
All traders would be invited for specific reasons and this would prevent illegal
traders turning up for events such as the ‘ Christmas light switch on’ as pitches
and products would already be occupied by ‘legal traders’ selling products that
comply with Trading Standards. In all cases the Town Centre Manager would
liaise with the businesses and Corporate Property to ensure that any traders
Page 48

were not in conflict with other businesses in the shops or markets before inviting
them to trade at events.
3.8

The potential areas have been identified in conjunction with Corporate Property
to give flexibility with events and the ongoing improvements of Hatfield Town
Centre. The areas identified by the red line on the plan at Appendix A can be
used for street trading as either single or multiple pitches dependant on the event
that is being supported and the suitability of the pitch at any given time. Any
particular street trading offering should not compete with the shops within the
Council’s ownership or the Hatfield Market.

3.9

The fees would need to be agreed so that one off events were profitable for the
trader concerned while not creating an imbalance with the traders already paying
rent for their businesses or the council being seen to make a profit from the street
trading consent.

3.10

The operating times would be flexible between 9.00am and midnight dependant
on whether it was a day time or evening event. Traders could be stalls, vehicles
or even a small marquee containing a demonstration or something similar.

3.11

Busker spots would be made available when appropriate to the event. Currently
when buskers attend primarily on market days there is no control on their
positioning in relation to other activities taking place.

3.12

The Committee are asked to consider whether the area marked by the red line in
Hatfield Town Centre should be redesignated from prohibited streets to consent
streets and if so to make that recommendation. These consents would be issued
in the name of the town centre manager so appropriate relative street trading
could take place during events to increase the ambience, offering and footfall at
events in Hatfield town centre.

4

Legal Implication(s)

4.1

Welwyn Hatfield Council is able to grant street trading consents under the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 and charge an appropriate fee.
This was assessed in 2013 as part of the budget review process. The council is
unable to use street trading fees to generate a profit.

4.2

The council is able to attach conditions to street trading consents and these can
be used to help ensure trading is carried out in a way which the council requires.

5

Financial Implication(s)

5.1

The fees charged currently for individual permanent street trading pitches is £165
per day per annum, (a Maximum £1155 per annum). Having taken advice from
the finance team an appropriate fee for a one off trader with no guaranteed return
business would be in the region of £20 - £25 per day. This would give an income
of between £1040 and £1300 per year if one trader traded for one day each week
each year which would be compatible with the fees charged for our permanent
street traders

5.2

The increase in fees would not be significant but would cover the costs of
administering the consents

Page 49

6

Risk Management Implications

6.1

The risks related to this proposal are similar to any other food establishment in
the borough and controls are in place through the national legislation.
Additionally through the consent regime the council can attach conditions to
street trading consents. These should be proportionate and it is suggested that
appropriate conditions should include:
a)

details of the food business to be provided in advance to the council’s
environmental health team, to include business name, type of food,
registering authority and food hygiene rating

b)

a requirement that the national food hygiene rating sticker for the
business is displayed in a prominent place visible to the public

7

Security & Terrorism Implication(s)

7.1

The council has an overarching duty to have due regard to the need to prevent
people from being drawn into terrorism, in the context of this report, that means
measures should be put in place to prevent street trading pitches being let to
those promoting views incompatible with this duty.

8

Procurement Implication(s)

8.1

None directly arising from this report

9

Climate Change Implication(s)

9.1

As the weather warms up, more people may wish to engage in outdoor events.

10

Link to Corporate Priorities

10.1

I confirm that the subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority
“maintain a safe and healthy community” and is linked to statutory requirements
under licensing and street trading legislation.

11

Equality and Diversity

11.1

An Equality Impact Screening Assessment has been carried out in connection
with the proposals contained in this report and the conclusion is that there are no
differential impacts against any of the 9 protected characteristics. .

Kate Payne
Licensing Team Leader
January 5th 2017
Appendix A – plan depicting proposed consent streets

Page 50

Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank

ENVIRONMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
OVERVIEW WORK PROGRAMME 2016-2017
Item No: 14
MEETING DATE
5 April 2017

REPORT TOPIC
Food Safety and Hygiene Plans, Policies and
Procedures Update
Health and Safety Service Plan
Climate Change
Serco Performance Report – Q3
Performance Indicators – Q3 and Q4
Allotment Strategy

AUTHOR

PRESENTATIONS and/or
EXTERNAL PARTIES

Nick Long
Nick Long
Nick Long
Claire Nicholls
Grace Crawford
Ann MacDonald

Page 53

Agenda Item 14

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 22

This page is intentionally left blank

